
Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   

 
MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA  

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
The Board of Commissioners of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, met in Budget/Public Policy 
Session in Conference Center Room 267 on the 2nd floor of the Charlotte-Mecklenburg 
Government Center located at 600 East Fourth Street, Charlotte, North Carolina at 2:34 p.m. on 
Tuesday, February 25, 2025. 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 
Present:  Chair Mark Jerrell, Vice-Chair Leigh Altman  

and Commissioners George Dunlap, Arthur Griffin,  
Vilma D. Leake, Laura J. Meier, Elaine Powell,  
Susan Rodriguez-McDowell, Yvette Townsend-Ingram 
County Manager Dena R. Diorio 
County Attorney Tyrone C. Wade 
Clerk to the Board Kristine M. Smith 
Deputy Clerk to the Board Arlissa Eason 

 
Absent:  None 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER  

 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Mark Jerrell, followed by introductions and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
 
 
25-0143      MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 
 
 
The Board received as information a presentation on the Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation 
Plan. 
 
Robert Wike Graham, Division Chief/Deputy Director of the Charlotte Fire 
Department/Charlotte-Mecklenburg Emergency Management, gave the presentation. 
 
Background:  The Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan is a core program within 
emergency management and is updated every five years to be compliant with federal and state 
guidelines. The Board will receive a presentation on the process to update and to receive public 
input on the plan.  
 
 
Commissioner Powell joined the meeting at 2:42 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 
 
Comments 
Commissioner Powell thanked them for their work and that she was passionate about the topic. 
She mentioned the dialogue about the dams being in poor conditions at a meeting held the day 
prior and asked if the action plan was part of it. Chief Graham said elected officials would have to 
change the way they did things at the state level and that they would have to address the issues 
directly. Commissioner Powell said about the disasters that had happened in her district, and the 
drinking water and groundwater contamination, she saw hazardous but not groundwater 
contamination impact. Tony Bateman, Emergency Management Planner,  said groundwater was 
not covered in the local plan but it was in the state plan.  
 
Commissioner Griffin said that 45% of the land was in the ETJ (extra-territorial jurisdiction), and 
mentioned that Youngblood was known as a nuclear evacuation route. He asked what role the 
Chief’s team played and the Board that could help with the decisions the City was making with the 
2040 plan. Chief Graham said some of those communities, when they were developed, were 
intended to be annexed, but the laws were changed. He said the homeowners had issues with the 
infrastructure. He said the concerns had gotten to the Governor’s office and the president of Duke 
Energy. He said it would be best if the County and City came to an agreement. He said he 
understood the issue and problem but didn’t know how to solve it.  
 
Vice Chair Altman said the answer was that it was in the Charlotte ETJ and that the City would fix it 
to standards, and asked the County Manager to confirm. County Manager Diorio clarified that they 
hadn’t identified any roads that would be fixed, but that area was a high concern. Vice Chair Altman 
said the first responders were very inspirational. She said she hoped that when there was another 
catastrophe in the country, they would look to see what was missed. She said they were always 
encouraging a culture of what was imaginable. She asked how the federal government and the 
Department of Defense were imagining the unimaginable.  
 
Chief Graham said they worked 24 hours a day, so a group gathered and shared information across 
multiple agencies/partners when something occurred. He said that on the nuclear side of things, the 
Nuclear Regulatory Commission had clear standards of what had to occur. He said they did that by 
using FEMA to evaluate them every year. He said FEMA wanted to know if they had the capacity to 
handle and take care of radiation if it got offsite, while Duke Energy handled onsite radiation. He 
said the task force met monthly to prepare for the nuclear exercise. He said that because they 
worked with both the McGuire and Catawba Nuclear Stations, their nuclear program spilled over 
into everything they did. 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   
 
Commissioner Dunlap said he was happy they were able to get Chief Graham on the NACO Justice 
& Public Safety Committee and that his knowledge was sought throughout the entire country. 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked for clarification on the funding breakdown. Chief 
Graham said it was a 25/75 split between the Federal and State governments between disaster 
relief and hazard mitigation projects. He said their funding plan fed into the state’s plan. He 
mentioned a program that they used on the terrorism side of things. He said it all got pretty in-
depth, and they had to do their own research to ensure they were correct with what they were 
looking for.  
 
Commissioner Meier thanked them for all their work. She asked why a nuclear disaster wouldn’t be 
on the initial risk index results. Chief Graham said that a radiological emergency was unlikely. He 
said they always assumed it would happen when they looked at the list. He said they always put 
themselves to the right of the incident as if it happened and looked to see what they could have 
done better. He said Emergency Management was all about relationships. Commissioner Meier 
asked as they relied more on computers, were cyber threats possible even though nothing had 
happened yet. Chief Graham said it was possible, but no nation-state had used it against another 
nation-state. He said that at the Federal level other nations had used it and gotten into US critical 
infrastructure. He said he didn’t know if they could shut down their entire grid, but it was something 
they were preparing for. 
 
Commissioner Leake joined the meeting at 3:10 p.m. 
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram asked if there was a top 10 list of hazards for Mecklenburg 
County. She asked if there were weaknesses, they could take to their delegation that was possible 
for them to push them forward. Chief Graham said yes, and said they were listed on their website. 
He said the Emergency Management Operations Plan listed the hazards and threats. He said cyber 
and AI were the new threats. Commissioner Townsend-Ingram asked if someone wanted to 
weaponize anthrax, how would it be listed. Chief Graham said it would be listed as a pandemic. 
 
Commissioner Powell recognized Mr. Bateman for his work and dedication. She said they needed 
to work with planners in all municipalities and that they needed to do better at doing so. Chief 
Graham said the decisions the Board made lasted 50 to 150 years, and when the Fire Chief decided 
where stations would be located, they planned for them to be 50 years old. He said there were fire 
stations that were at least 100 years old. He said they had to plan around things like that, and the 
decisions were critical to Mecklenburg County.  
 
Chair Jerrell thanked them for their work and dedication. 
 
 
 
 
25-0141      2026-2027 BOARD BUDGET PRIORITIES AND GOALS  
 
The Board received an update regarding the FY2026-2027 Board Budget Priorities and Goals. 
 
Michael Griswold, MPA, Deputy Director of Strategy & Innovation, gave the presentation. 
 
Background:   At the Board's FY2026 Budget Retreat, the Board identified its new FY2026-2027 
Board Priorities and asked staff to provide recommended goals, key performance measures, and 
targets (as appropriate) for each priority. This presentation is responsive to that Board request. 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   

 

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   

 
 
 
 
Comments 
 
Chair Jerrell said it was a starting point for what they asked for. He said if they provided specific 
feedback, it would be helpful and give them an opportunity to provide specifics for areas they 
may not be familiar with.  
 
Commissioner Griffin asked about racial disparities – if they didn’t know the gaps, how did they 
close them. He asked if there was a way to define the gaps so they knew what they were trying 
to close. He said a lot were aspirational goals and not necessarily SMART goals, such as adult 
daycares; he said a SMART goal would be to close the gap by a certain percentage.  He asked if 
they were targeting certain activities with the budget. He said SMART goals would help him. He 
said it seemed like the same areas they worked on last year. He also mentioned connecting 
SMART goals and Pre-K. 
 
Commissioner Meier thanked him and his team. On slide 3, she said the list of priorities was 
more simplified than what they heard at the Budget Retreat, so she asked if MWSBE could be 
placed there. She said they discussed economic development and upward mobility and asked if 
it could also be added. On slide 27, regarding senior services, she said adult daycare was a 
major concern for them and said she didn't see it listed.  
 
Commissioner Dunlap said he was happy to see the goals for the County and their partners 
were separated. He said he didn’t want to see them hold people accountable for something 
they had no control over. He said a lot of things didn’t seem to be goals. He provided an 
example of what was considered a goal. He said that with MWSBE and concerns with 
developers, he didn’t see a percentage of those who applied for a contract and the percentage 
that made it to an interview. He asked for clarification as to why some of them were considered 
goals. County Manager Diorio said they were trying to get a consensus around the measures 
first before setting a target. She said she didn’t know if they could track those who made it to an 
interview. She said they would have to create a mechanism to track that data. Mr. Griswold 
provided the difference between goals and the proposed measures of success.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell said it was difficult to absorb the information. She said she 
agreed with Commissioner Griffin and the SMART goals. She echoed her agreement with 
Commissioner Dunlap’s comments as well. She said she also said she wanted to track the data 
in relation to MWSBE. She asked for clarification on slide 36 (bullet point 3) of what it meant. 
She said she wanted to make sure they were standing up for their communities' values. Mr. 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   
Griswold said that it was possible that some legislation that may have gotten passed in the 
future would hinder them from doing some of the racial disparity work. He said it was important 
to highlight the work they did and that it could help to continue to make an impact. 
 
Commissioner Leake thanked him and said that their work helped the Board make major 
decisions. She said her concerns were with how much community input was involved and that 
she would like to sit down and go over their findings.  
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram asked how their programs were being communicated to 
maximize impact. She said they had to have a mechanism to track year after year. She asked 
how they could meet the goals of racial disparities if they had to comply with DEI eliminations. 
She asked if they knew which ones were tied to federal or state funding. She said they should 
have a mechanism to compare to what the City and State did. Mr. Griswold said they had a 
robust management system for data they tracked and how it got back to them. He said there 
were some things they tracked internally, but the presentation was framed to give an 
understanding of what they heard at the retreat. He said there were opportunities to do more. 
County Manager Diorio said they didn’t know if they could hold up with the DEI efforts until they 
had something concrete. She said they would have to wait and see what the impact was. She 
said there were things the government saw as DEI that they didn’t. She also added that they 
tracked 1,722 pieces of data in the County.  
 
Commissioner Powell said it was a great start, and at the retreat, they were all voting for 
different reasons. She echoed Commissioner Townsend-Ingram’s question of what they were 
doing to track impact.  
 
Vice Chair Altman echoed the comments on SMART goals and metrics. She said that in 
workforce development, they needed to think about their future and be visionaries of what 
they could do. She wanted to see that reflected in their priorities.  
 
Commissioner Griffin said he was very focused on programs for upward mobility. He said that 
when they were giving so much money to CMS (Charlotte-Mecklenburg Schools), they should 
be able to partner in a way that addressed both of their needs.  
 
Commissioner Dunlap told County Manager Diorio he could look at data to determine if some 
got contracts. He said there were people who came back to him and said they didn’t get 
through the process. He said he could look at the data to respond and say why. He also said the 
information was a lot to absorb.  
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram concerning slide 30 – asked if they had defined “median to 
high paying jobs rather than the $18 to $20 jobs that individuals currently had.” She said the 
community would disagree that most of the jobs received paid between $18 to $20. She said 
the unemployment system was broken. She said there were things they had put in place, but 
they didn’t go back to see where the broken spots were. She said it was important to 
understand they were missing something if they didn’t go back and meet people where they 
were.  
 
Commissioner Leake said they had to look at who they were serving and what the people were 
telling them what they needed and wanted.  
 
Vice Chair Altman mentioned how Public Health worked with community leaders during the 
COVID-19 pandemic to ensure the community had access to vaccines. She said it was in their 
DNA to take care of their most vulnerable. She said it was fundamentally their mission and job 
and would not change.  
 
Chair Jerrell said everyone on the Board would sign off on reducing racial disparities. He also 
agreed with the SMART goals approach. He said it would be tricky, and they wouldn’t be able to 
track everything. He said they may not have the ability to track everything, but it’s what they 



Meeting Minutes 
February 25, 2025   
aspired to do. He asked how, with the partners they funded, they could take the data and say 
how to move forward. He said setting a target was important. 
 
The Board discussed the addition of language to their goals.  
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Dunlap, seconded by Commissioner Powell, and 
unanimously carried, to extend the meeting until the discussion was finished.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell said that regarding the goal of workforce development, she 
expected the language to be more focused on upward mobility, with workforce development 
falling under it.    
 
Commissioner Griffin said Meck Pre-K belonged to them, and they should have been able to 
look to their partners to ensure it was doing what it was designed to do. He said he wanted to 
ensure it was still included in the Education portion of their goals.  
 
Chair Jerrell clarified what the purpose of the overall discussion was.  
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Leake, seconded by Commissioner Dunlap, and carried 7-2, 
with Chair Jerrell and Commissioner Powell voting no, to adjourn the meeting without 
Commissioner Reports.  
 
 
25-0142  COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
 
None. 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business to come before the Board, Chair Jerrell declared the meeting 
adjourned at 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
 

            
______________________________ ____________________________ 
Arlissa Eason, Deputy Clerk to the Board                                                               Mark Jerrell, Chair 


	MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
	ATTENDANCE


